
 

 
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 

Date: 
 

Monday, 7 March 2022 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Hybrid Meeting - Council Chamber,  Moorlands House, Leek and via Microsoft 

Teams 
25 February 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 10) 

4. Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel. (Pages 11 - 16) 

5. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

6. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

7. Work Programme (6:10pm) (Pages 17 - 18) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 

8. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. (6.20pm)  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

9. Local Policing Annual Update - Chief Inspector Mark Thorley. (6.30pm) (Pages 19 - 
22) 

10. Fire and Rescue Service Annual Update -  Rob Barber, Chief Fire Officer and 

Dermot Hogan, Northern Service Delivery Group Lead. (Verbal Update) (7pm)  

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



11. OUTSIDE - The Staffordshire Moorlands Project funded by Arts Council England's 
Creative People and Places Programme. (7:30pm) (Pages 23 - 28) 

12. Climate Change Update - David Smith,  Head of Communities and Climate Change.  
(Verbal Update) (8pm)  

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor D Shaw (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley 
Councillor G Heath Councillor I Herdman 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor K Hoptroff 

Councillor B A Hughes Councillor A Hulme 
Councillor B Johnson Councillor J T Jones 

Councillor K Martin Councillor T Riley 
Councillor P Roberts Councillor L Swindlehurst 
Councillor P Taylor Councillor R Ward 

Councillor N Yates  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY, 17 JANUARY 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor D Shaw (Chair)   
 

 Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, 
B A Hughes, B Johnson, J T Jones, K Martin, T Riley, P Roberts, 

L Swindlehurst, P Taylor, R Ward and N Yates 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors C J S Atkins, M Bowen, B Cawley, M Deaville, 

E Fallows, K Flunder, M Gledhill, A Hart, I Plant, J Porter, P Wood 
and S Coleman 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillor T McNicol. 
 

77 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 
 

There were none. 
 

78 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 

No urgent items of business were raised. 
 

79 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 
DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Community Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel held on 15 November 2021 be APPROVED as a 

correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

80 TO NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE POLICE, FIRE 
AND CRIME PANEL. 

 
DECIDED:  That the minutes of the last meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel 

be NOTED. 

 
81 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item 9 – 

Citizens Advice Bureau 
(CAB) Annual Update 

Cllrs Atkins, Hoptroff 

and Swindlehurst  

Other – All trustees of 

the Leek CAB. 

 
82 WORK PROGRAMME 

 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

2 
 

Members discussed the importance of the Climate Change Action Plan and the 
possibility of it being included as a standing item for each meeting of the Panel. 

Regular updates on the Council’s website which demonstrated to the public the 
actions that had been taken were requested. David Smith – Head of Communities 
and Climate Change, advised that improvements to the website were planned 

following as upgrade to the system. The Portfolio Holder also gave examples of 
recent campaigns which had been displayed on the website and agreed that more 

work could be done with a view to incorporate more interactive content on the 
website. 
 

Councillor Roberts suggested the Fire and Rescue Service could be invited to attend 
the meeting of the Panel scheduled for March 2022. 

 
DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed, subject to, the inclusion of 

a standing item on Climate Change for each meeting and the Fire and 

Rescue Service being invited to the meeting on 7 March 2022. 
 

83 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
Questions received from Councillor Yates: 

 

1.  A resident has informed me that Support Staffordshire are sending out 

invitations to public workshops on behalf of SMDC on Part 2 of the Climate 
Change Action Plan, is this correct, if so what is their remit in terms of: who is 
invited; what is the timetable; are Anthesis involved; what is the precise 

purpose/aim? 
 

Response from Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change & 
Biodiversity: 

The Council has commissioned Anthesis to carry out a series of workshops for the 
Council as was set out in the report that was considered by this Panel on the 15th 

November 2021. An update on the workshops will be provided as part of the climate 
change verbal update this evening. 
 

2. Fuel Poverty and Energy Efficiency measures are an important part of Part 2 

of the Climate Change Action Plan; does SMDC have any plans to reinforce 
their intended actions in light of the current Energy Crisis? 

 
Response from Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change & 
Biodiversity: 

The Chief Executive has called a meeting of relevant Heads of Service next week to 
discuss the issue. We have identified fuel poverty and energy efficiency as priorities 

and we will look to see what we can do at a district level to respond appropriately to 
this national problem. 
   
By way of supplementary questions, Councillor Yates requested a commitment to 
communicate with members when the Council was planning any future workshops 

etc. and for review of local authority housing allowance rates. In response, he was 
asked to write to Councillor Ralphs – The Leader, for the matter of the review to be 
considered.  

 
He also mentioned the financial stress felt by residents due to increased energy 

prices, and made a suggestion for an advice help sheet to be included with the 
Council Tax bills. In addition to this, Councillor Porter explained, the Revenues Team Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

3 
 

had supported low income families and would continue to do so. The Panel would be 
updated on the outcome of the meeting called by the CEO. 

 
84 CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU - ANNUAL UPDATE (LEEK, CHEADLE & 

STAFFORDSHIRE NORTH & STOKE-ON-TRENT BIDDULPH OFFICE) - 

(6:15PM) 
 

Individual presentations for Biddulph and Cheadle Citizens Advice Bureaux had 
been circulated to members prior to the meeting. Each presentation contained 
details on volunteers, response to Covid, statistical information, financial data, case 

studies and feedback from clients. 
 

Sam Hubbard, Generalist Services Manager, introduced the presentation on behalf 
of the Biddulph CAB and Lindon Parr gave a verbal update for the Leek CAB. 
Unfortunately, Julie Billingham – Chief Officer, CAB, wasn’t able to attend the 

meeting and gave her apologies. If members had any specific queries for her these 
could be emailed to the Democratic Services Team.  

 
Discussion took place around assistance to clients when bailiffs had been instructed 
and costs levied. In response to queries around increased on-line fraud and face-to-

face appointments, the  Panel was advised although on-line fraud had increased 
nationally, they hadn’t noticed an increase locally. Appointments in person were 

limited to those that it was essential for and the use of the larger meeting rooms at 
Moorlands House would be investigated.   
 

It was noted that the CAB provided a service from the cabins at Werrington Library 
and funding was currently being sourced to fund a vehicle which would visit 

communities and provide an alternative way to access the CAB.  
 
Councillors passed on their thanks for the excellent work carried out by the CAB 

staff.  
 
DECIDED: That the update be NOTED. 

 
85 SUPPORT STAFFORDSHIRE UPDATE PRESENTATION. (6:45PM) 

 

Jill Norman - North Staffordshire Operations Manager, provided a presentation to 

members which covered the following topics:  

 
 An overview of the organisation 

 The offer available to voluntary and community  group 

 Advice 

 Contact details for the Moorlands Team 

 Community Group support 

 Arts Forum support 

 “Outside” – Creative People and Places, Arts England 

 
Members were pleased to hear that Support Staffordshire had been commissioned 

to provide the Healthwatch contract and that they were locally based. The detai l on 
how the contract would be delivered was still being finalised but the organisation’s 
approach would be to provide a more focussed community based service. 

 Page 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

4 
 

Examples of community groups which had struggled to exist during the pandemic 
were described by members and the Officer asked for these groups to be referred to 

her organisation for assistance and also encouraged people to become members to 
receive their monthly newsletters. Discussion took place around revitalisation of 
community groups, publicity, succession planning and the impact of national/regional 

charities being awarded contracts to deliver services. 
 

The number of young volunteers had increased and it was important they were 
encouraged and offered training. The Staffordshire Council of Volunteer Youth 
Service (SCVYS), were best placed to support younger volunteers. 

 
The Panel was advised that quarterly locality forums were advertised on the website 

and on social media.  
 
Jill was thanked for the informative presentation and for the support her organisation 

had given to community groups in the area. 
 
DECIDED: That the presentation be received. 

 
86 YOUR HOUSING GROUP - REGULAR PERFORMANCE UPDATE. (7:15PM) 

 

Members considered a briefing paper introduced by Kelly Tasker – Service Manager 

Housing Operations South, which provided a performance and development update 
on YHG business areas identified in the legacy agreement and related to business 
activity between April 2021 and September 2021. Aaron Hamersley – Head of 

Housing , Dave Lovatt – Regional Housing Manager, Paula Marshall Director of 
Housing and Customer Service and Conan McKinley - Director of Asset Strategy 

were present at the meeting. Two customer representatives; Cheryl Ballan and 
Andrea Hampton were also in attendance. Apologies had been received from 
George Wallace. 

Topics covered within the report included: 
 

- Your Housing Group Response to Covid 19 

- Housing Management 

- Neighbourhood inspection and Customer Engagement Events 

- Money Advice Support 

- Lettings 

- Compliance 

- Development 

- Repairs and Maintenance 

- Asset improvement 

- Digital Engagement 

- Community Regeneration 
- Commercial update 

 
Clarity was sought around the actual number of new houses built and more detail on 

the new staffing structure was requested 
 

Around letting performance, it was felt that the target of 28.5 days was a long period 
of time for properties to be re-let. Officers explained that performance had been 
impacted by Covd-19 and been affected with shortages of labour and materials to 

complete void repair works. Page 6



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

5 
 

 
It was queried as to whether any of the properties planned on Sunninghill Drive, 

Leek would be available to rent once the site had been developed. Colleagues from 
the Development Team at YHG would look into this and confirm after the meeting. 
 

A member of the Panel raised his concerns in relation to the length of time an elderly 
tenant had waited for the heating and hot water to be reinstated and the unsightly 

damp patches on the relatively new properties at Cellarhead was noted.  
 
The organisation was thanked for the engagement with members in regards to the 

Bellevue Flats, the excellent communication and local knowledge of David Lovatt – 
Regional Housing Manager, and for the support a councillor had received with the 

installation of swift boxes. She asked if it would be possible to consider the roll-out of 
the boxes in other areas of the Moorlands. 
 

With reference to the ongoing structural works at Daisy Haye and the annual service 
charge paid by residents, Officers confirmed that the works were due to come to end 

shortly and had included the replacement of the cladding. Members were assured 
that the cost of the works had not been passed on in the service charge to residents. 
However, increased costs of utility bills for communal areas within the building may 

be passed on to customers in the future.  
 

Cheryl Ballan – YHG Customer Representative, advised the Panel that following 
concerns in relation to the handling of complaints, the policy had  been amended. 
Customers were now allocated a single point of contact and direct contact number 

for the person handling their complaint.  
 

At the request of the Panel, Conan McKinley - Director of Asset Strategy, provided a 
presentation on the organisation’s approach to climate change and planned 
investment. The topics covered included: 

 
• Current Performance & Scale of the challenge 

• Funding 
• Retrofit 
• Smart Technology 

• Planned Investment (Overall and for the Staffordshire Moorlands) 
 

Members were pleased with YHG’s commitment to climate change and wished to 
receive regular updates on the work undertaken by the organisation. More 
information was requested on heat source pumps and if consideration could be 

given to a pilot community heating scheme in the area.  
 

Discussion took place around energy performance assessments for each house, 
policies for renewable energy and plans for the management of green spaces and 
increased biodiversity.  

 
Although gas boilers would no longer be installed in new build properties from 2025, 

and alternative heating solutions were being considered, some members felt this 
time period was too long.  
 

The Chair thanked the Officers for their attendance at the meeting. 
 
 
 Page 7



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

6 
 

DECIDED: - 

 

1) The performance update be noted; 

2) That the Climate Change and Planned Investment presentation be 

circulated to members; 

3) Confirmation of the actual numbers of homes built and a detailed staff 

structure to be provided after the meeting; 

4) For members to notify the Democratic Services Team the specific details 

of the heating/hot water repair and location of the damp properties in 
Cellarhead to enable YHG to investigate.    

 
87 CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE (7:45PM) 

 

Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Biodiversity, was in 
attendance at the meeting to provide a verbal update following a request made by 

the Chair. As agreed at the last meeting, an annual update would be provided to the 
Panel, along with 6 monthly progress updates. 

 
Activities carried out since November included the following key areas:- 

 

 Anthesis had submitted their draft report on emissions from the 

Council’s procurement of services and items 

 

 The Council has produced an easy-to-read summary of its Climate 

Change Strategy with the assistance of the Plain English Society and 

had commissioned two animated explainer videos that would be made 

available on the Council’s website. 

 

 Support Staffordshire had also been commissioned to support local, 

community-based action to help deliver the Council’s Climate Change 

Strategy. This would include administering a Community Climate 

Change and Nature Emergency fund on behalf of the Council from 

April 2022. 

 

 Key stakeholder workshops had taken place and two further sessions 

were planned with community organisations, town and parish councils 

and businesses. 

 

 The Council proposed to use the Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool 

that was developed by ‘Local Partnerships’ in association with the LGA 

to monitor Council emissions and would continue to measure using the 
Scatter methodology developed by Anthesis. 

 
Members appreciated the update and thanked Councillor Porter and David Smith for 

their attendance at the meeting. 
 

A written summary of the verbal report was requested by the Panel, along with a 
section on the website where achievements and progress in regards to climate 
change could be demonstrated. 

 Page 8



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 January 2022 
 

7 
 

The publication date of the Council’s Tree Strategy was queried and it was 
confirmed that this would be part of the Nature Recovery Strategy. A climate change 

page was available on the Council’s website and it was noted that improvements 
could made. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Yates and seconded by Councillor Taylor that the 
Climate Change Sub-Groups be reconvened, for each group to meet twice per year 

and for Councillor Porter to attend when possible. A vote was taken and the Panel 
approved the recommendation. 
 

The Portfolio Holder explained, that sub groups were task and finish, this Panel had 
responsibility for the scrutiny of the Climate Change Strategy and efforts should be 

focussed on the implementation of the Strategy and engagement with the 
community. 
 
DECIDED:  

1) That the update be NOTED and a written summary of the verbal report be 

circulated to members; 

2) The Panel RECOMMENDED that the Climate Change Sub-Groups be 

reconvened. 

 

88 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC. 
 

That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, 

the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that 

confidential information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be 
disclosed to the public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act 

would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 
 
 

89 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 

DECIDED: That the exempt minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a 

correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.55 pm 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel 
Report of the Chairman of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel 

 
To All Member Authorities 

 
In accordance with agreed practice, I am reporting on matters dealt with 

by the Police, Fire and Crime Panel at its meeting on 14 February 2022. 
 

The main items considered were:  
 
Appointment of Chairman for the Meeting 

Councillor Tony Holmes be appointed Chairman for the meeting. 
 

 
Questions to the PFCC from Members of the Public 

No questions were submitted in time for this meeting. 
 

Decisions published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner 
(PFCC) 
Details were submitted of decisions published by the Commissioner since 

the last Panel meeting.  
  

1. Child Exploitation and Missing Services - 008 
SCP-D-202122-008.pdf (staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk)  

 
There were no questions on the decision.  Cllr Edgeller expressed her 

appreciation for the work of the service and the continued support of the 
Commissioner. 
 

Proposed Fire and Rescue Budget and Precept 2022/23 
The Commissioner introduced his report which set out the proposed 

budget and precept proposals for the Fire and Rescue Authority for 
2022/23.  

 
The Panel received a presentation from the Commissioners Chief Finance 

Officer, which was considered along with the Fire Revenue Budget Report 
(including the MTFS and Precept). 
                                                                                            

It was reported that the Settlement Funding for 2022/23 had been 
confirmed at £13.652million, made up of; Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 

which had been set at £4.923million; Local Business Rates revenue of 
£2.670million and Business Top up of £6.059million.  It was noted that 

the RSG had reduced by £9million since 2012.  The total budget 
requirement for the service was £42,472million.  The Commissioner was 

proposing to part fund the balance from Council Tax funding of £28.532 
million and proposed an increase of 1.99% per annum (£1.57 pa per Band 
D property). The Commissioner informed the Panel that this figure was in 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



line with the referendum limit.  Consultation on the proposed budget had 
resulted in 70% support for the increase. 

 
Referring to Appendix 1 of the report, it was explained that the Pay costs 

for 2022/23 had increased by £1 million due to an assumption of pay 
increase of 3%.  It was noted that there were also significant risks and 

uncertainties beyond 2022/23 which included the impact of national pay 
awards, implications of the Sargeant/McCloud High Court judgment on 

pension costs and risks associated with cost increases and the upcoming 
formula funding review and high levels of inflation.  All of which made 
future planning a challenge.  

 
The Panel also considered the following documents: 

 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23 which set out 

proposals for the management of the Fire Authorities cash flows, 

borrowing and investments and the risks. 

 The Reserves Strategy update paper considered the overall level of 

reserves held by the Authority at 31 March 2022.  The paper focused 

on two key areas of reserves that impacted on the future financial 

strategy.  These were the General Reserve balance forecast as at 31 

March was £1.9million and Earmarked (specific) Reserves, to meet 

future or predicted requirements balance at 31 March 2022 was 

forecast to be £7.5million.   

 The Fire Authorities Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 

2022/23 to 2024/25 (Including Minimum Revenue Provision Policy). 

It was explained that the transformation programme was key in order to 

deliver savings and that there were a number of areas which were being 
worked upon, all aligned to the Safety Plan 2020/24 and the Fire Plan 

2021-24.  These were: 
 Corporate Reform 

 Response and crewing reform 
 Prevention and Protection reform 

 Estates and shared services reform. 
 
Following a question on how the efficiency savings (pay efficiency and non 

pay efficiency) on appendix 7 would be met (both lines £156,000) and 
their relationship to the transformation plan savings of £2million, it was 

reported that the overall £306,000 was split evenly between the two 
budget heads and would be achieved as a result of the transformation 

plan.  They were therefore part of the same saving.  The Commissioner 
felt that the transformation plan savings were achievable but would be 

challenging. 
 
It was explained that on Appendix One, the PFI unitary charges of £3.003 

million were as a result of the service having 21 PFI Fire stations of which 
there were 2 PFI contracts.  These incurred charges for facility 

Page 12



management and lifecycle costs etc.  The Premises costs of £3.897 million 
were made up of cost on the residual estate; HQ; Joint Emergency 

Transport and general running costs. 
 

The General Income of £3.3million would be generated through: 
 Special Services Grant of £663,000 issued by Central Government 

to primarily cover the costs of National Insurance increases (this will 
be be split and carried forward to future years) 

 Business Rates S.31 Grants - £1.4m 
 General Fees and Charges (see appendix 10) incl. conference 

facilities 

 Police service level agreements for shared premises e.g. Hanley and 
Tamworth 

 There may be potential to increase income further through the 
Commissioner’s joint estates strategy by sharing more buildings. In 

addition arrangements with the CCU, for example, helping with the 
vaccination programme and booster programmes and use of 

buildings.  
 
If savings could not be made or income generated, it was reported that 

reserves would have to be used in the short term and the Strategy would 
be reviewed. 

 
The Panel adjourned to consider their response to the Commissioners 

budget and precept proposals.  Upon reconvening the Panel agreed the 
recommendations in the report which included the proposed budget and 

Precept increase 1.99% (£1.57 per annum, per household (Band D)). 
 
Fire and Rescue Service Safety Plan 2020-2024 Update Report 

The report provided the Panel with an update on the delivery of the 
Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service Safety Plan (SP), Integrated Risk 

Management Plan (IRMP). 
 

Following the transfer of governance from the Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Authority to the Staffordshire 

Commissioner, a new Safety Plan 2020-2024 was developed which was 
published in August 2020. 
 

The Safety Plan was designed to underpin the Staffordshire 
Commissioners Fire and Rescue Plan and four priorities for the Service 

were determined following consultation across Staffordshire in 2020.  
 

The four priorities outlined in the current Commissioners Fire and Rescue 
Plan were:  

 A flexible and responsive service 

 Protect people and places 

 Help people most at risk stay safe 

Page 13



 A fire and rescue service for tomorrow 

 

Detail on the priorities and the progress to date was contained in the 
report. 

 
Following a question on the relationship between the Fire Service and 

Housing Associations, the Commissioner agreed that liaison with housing 
companies throughout the County needed to be developed and would be 

looked at.  There was an expectation that Fire services would be more 
involved with building regulations in future. 
 

The way that building inspections were prioritised and audited was 
discussed.  It was explained that this was risk based and the methodology 

would be sent to the Panel for information. 
 

With regard to the retro fitting of sprinklers and the rational of match 
funding for one project, it was asked if this had set a president for other, 

private landlords to apply.  It was explained that his was a programme 
aimed at large buildings at the moment.  The Commissioner agreed to 
investigate the cost of the programme and its effectiveness. 

 
The Panel asked the Commissioner to pass on their thanks to the service 

for their help during the pandemic, particularly helping with the rollout of 
the vaccination programme. 

 
Questions to the PFCC by Panel Members 

Members of the Panel questioned/sought the views of the Commissioner 
on the following issues and received the responses indicated:  
  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Web
cast can be found at Browse meetings - Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime 

Panel - Staffordshire County Council 
 

For more information on these meetings or on the Police, Fire and Crime 
Panel in general please contact Mandy Pattinson e mail 

mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Question  Response  

With regard to the first meeting 
of the Staffordshire and Stoke 
on Trent Strategic Community 

Forum, the Commissioner was 
asked for his views. 

 

It had given the Chief Fire 

Officer an opportunity to talk to 

the new Chief Executive of the 

Integrated Care Service and 

offer the services support and 

assistance in preventing fire and 

accidents.  Similarly, the Chief 

Constable had been able to 

discuss issues around addiction 

and mental health. 

Page 14

https://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=1150
https://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=1150
mailto:mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk


 
Details of Panel meetings are issued to contact officers in each of the 

District/Borough Councils in the County and Stoke-on-Trent City Council 
for posting on their own web sites. 

 
Councillor Tony Holmes, Chairman for the Meeting 

Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel                       
 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2021/22 

 
Date Items for Agenda  

21 June 2021   

 Refreshed Community Safety Strategy  

 Climate Change Action Plan  
12 July 2021   

 Your Housing Group Regular Update   
 Update - Levels of Pollution and the Air Quality Action 

Plan 
 

06 Sep 2021   
 Anti-Social Behaviour  

08 Nov 2021   
 Climate Change Action Plan - Part 2  

 Scrutiny Review – Discussion Item  
17 Jan 2022   

 Support Staffordshire Update Presentation   

 Your Housing Group Regular Update   

 Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update     

 Climate Change Update  

7 March 2022   

 Local Policing Annual Update   

 Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update  

 OUTSIDE - The Staffordshire Moorlands Project funded 
by Arts Council England's Creative People and Places 
Programme 

 

  

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually and Additional 

Items 

Status Update 

Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  Invite new municipal year 
Local Policing Team Annual Update  Scheduled to attend March 2022 

Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update  Scheduled to attend Jul 2022 
Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update  Scheduled to attend March 2022 

Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update  Scheduled to attend Jan 2023 
Refreshed Environment Enforcement Policy Due approx. April 2022 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



 

Climate Change Strategy 6 Monthly and Annual Update  May 2022 and Nov 2022 
Kick Start Scheme - invited Invited to attend 

P
age 18



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Neighbourhood Policing Team annual update, Ch. Insp. Mark Thorley - 

Neighbourhood Policing Team Commander.  
Compiled 23rd February 2022 

 
 
This 12 months compared to the previous, January 2021 - 2022. 

 
Last year, I reported a 10% reduction in recorded crime. 

This year I report an 8% increase. 
 

Whilst not welcomed such an increase is not surprising given that I have reported reductions 
for the past three years and as the Covid pandemic retreats and life starts to get back to 

normal so do crime statistics. 
That being said, within these statistics there are still significant reductions in some crimes and 
ASB. 
 

Incident demand  (calls for service). 

Moorlands - down 4 % 
581 fewer calls for service 

 

All crime 
Moorlands – up 8 % 
337 more crimes 

 
Burglary residential, Last year I reported a reduction of 22%, this year sees further reductions 
of 15%, (18 less offences). 
 
Cr iminal  damage, Last year a 14% reduction, this year a further reduction of 6% (35 less 
offences). 
 
Theft from a Motor Vehicle,  Last year a 34% reduction, this year a further reduction of 27% 
(27 less crimes). 
 
Theft of motor vehicles, Last year a 24% reduction, this year a reduction of 9% (6 less crimes).  
 
Sexual offences, shows an increase of 20% (36 more crimes) with increases in Rape and Other 
serious sexual offences. 
I understand the concern this may cause, any increase in an area such as this is concerning, 

but to offer reassurance. 
I can confirm that the work we do to investigate and monitor such increases in crime show 

that repeat victims, offenders, or locations are not an issue with regard to sexual offences. 
It is also the case that in recent years we have come a long way in reassuring victims of sexual 

abuse that they will be supported when reporting a sex crime, whether that be a recent 
crime or an incident in their past, I raise this as a significant number of these reports have 

been historical reports. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



Any report of a sexual offence will be investigated by skilled investigators seeking to support 
the victim and bring offenders to justice. 
  
Less serious violent cr ime with Injury,  Shows an increase of 32% (131 more crimes). The 
greatest percentage increase (129%) being assaulting an emergency worker (9 more), and 
Section 47 assault, up 35% (126 more). 
Leek town and Cheadle town are the most common locations for these incidents, accounting 
for 91 of the increased incidents. 

However it should be remembered that the night time economies in these towns have 
become active after long periods of being closed or having reduced numbers due to the 

Pandemic, so they will show increases as they become busy again. 
The Moorlands town centres continue to be some of the safest to visit in the County.  

That being said a plan is in place with our licensing colleagues to review and take action 
against any licensed premises found to be contributing to, or having become a focal point for, 

any increase in violence. 
 

Outcomes 
In the past year positive outcomes from investigations sit at 17%, an increase of 5% (up to 
800 from 433). This includes 291 charges or postal requisitions, 152 community resolutions 

and 263 cases where the offender has been subject to diversionary, educational or 
intervention activity, or when it was not in the public interest to take further action. 

 

ASB  
Moorlands – Last year I reported a 10% reduction, this year I report a further -15% reduction 
(259 fewer incidents) 

 
This year saw us move away from the “stay at home” Covid orders of 2020/1 with greater 

freedoms being given back, so it is reassuring to see that as the community have ventured 
back outside ASB issues such as “rowdy and inconsiderate” have remained low (-8% 78 less). 

Especially given the large increase in tourism into the area, which I will touch on later. 
 

Road traffic collisions 
There continues to be reductions in those killed or seriously injured on the roads of the 
Staffordshire Moorlands. 

Currently there is a 79% reduction in collisions classed as Killed or seriously injured. 
One less person died on the Moorlands roads during the last year, one less than the year 

before, but still one too many. 
There have been fourteen less collisions which have resulted in serious injury (-82%). 

The NPT hold a monthly road policing operation with the support of partners such as the 
force road crime team, and VOSA. 
During this operation we use the information received from the community and apply the 
knowledge we have to best target identified areas for antisocial use of vehicles, and the fatal 
four causes for road deaths, mobile phones, drink and drugs, speed and seatbelts. 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 20



Tourism 
It became clear this year that the “Staycation”  trend led to the Moorlands continuing to be a 

very popular destination for tourism, with visitors travelling from across the Midlands and 
further afield to visit. 

Throughout the spring, summer and autumn of 2021 many days of the week were busier 
than a hot sunny bank holiday would have been previously. 

In response to calls for service from concerned residents, and visitors, the policing team 
formed a working group of interested partners such as the Council, the National Trust, Peak 

Park Rangers and FARS. 
Collectively we worked to identify the issues being experienced, aligning the problems with 

the most appropriate partner best placed to deal with such issues as traffic congestion, 
littering and parking problems. 

This collaborative approach has been successful in adapting to what may well be a welcome 
boost to the local economy, whilst maintaining harmony in the many villages, and seeking to 

preserve the beauty and feel of the area for future generations to come. 
Of note despite concerns that such tourism could lead to an increase in wild fires such as 

those we had in 2018 this has proven not to be the case to date. 
 
 

Annual overview. 
Another challenging year for your neighbourhood Policing team, with the Covid pandemic 

continuing to present problems, from staff shortages due to outbreaks within our own or 
force resources, mass tourism, the resurgence of the night time economies, to increases in 

public protest across the force meaning staff often being called upon to work harder and 
longer to fill the gaps left. 
 
We have introduced, and piloted for the force, Facebook live community poli cing 
engagement. 
Moorlands officers have approached local Facebook groups such as LeekTV and Cheadle 
Forum to ask if they could hold engagement sessions on their group pages. 
Officers then being able to introduce themselves, update communities as to what we are 
doing, and seek the concerns and views of the communities they police to better guide our 
priorities, and subsequently the action we take. 
This has been a great success with such events being seen by thousands of viewers each 
time, receiving many compliments. 
This will continue to supplement the existing engagement we undertake. 
 
I am lucky in that I continue to be supported by a great team who work tirelessly to provide 
the Moorlands community with the best service they can. 
This includes our Special Constables whose active and continued support sees many of them 
giving up numerous days and weekend nights to support their communities during peak 

periods. 
 

We say goodbye to Mr Morgan and welcome our new Chief Constable, Mr Noble, who brings 
plans to return to a local policing model which will see resources move back to the 

Moorlands from the city hub they moved to in 2018. 
I see this as a positive for the Moorlands, bringing Policing back to a local level under the 

control of the local commander. 
Details of the new operating model are included in the link below. 

Page 21



Staffordshire Police confirms new local policing model | Staffordshire Police  

 
Resources. 
I have 21 Neighbourhood Police Constables, I currently carry one vacancy. 
I have a team of 18 PCSO’s. 

I have three NPT Sgts. 
I have one NPT Inspector Deputy 

I have 2 Investigating Officers (IO’s) though one post is vacant. 
I have a Vulnerability coordinator who works within the harm reduction hub at Leek. 
 
Until June as part of the current directorate policing model our response Policing continues 
to be supplied from a central hub at Hanley who move to deployment locations across the 
Moorlands at the start of their tour of duty. 
 
The NPT is led by myself. 
 
Ch. Insp Mark Thorley. 

Page 22

https://url6.mailanyone.net/v1/?m=1nNcDa-0009zY-4d&i=57e1b682&c=CdesoeeerBA3H1zfo8TiyR_U9l68CoEG5rWDNST04q8gpnccwP5VccPWxvo1K45VhRqQtpugS3QSFoniQf8sHVNVc94TG45KdOG5NgnzTOtl0kvhSPhtxhWyAlNmOWkIgYAt737xITOTU3djOIQzDWTw_z8BxmDNOcoxoXiOx4jMwGYrviZo1f2xyNmDuAAr2U1qfOs7QVcizVDSdxuFq6mea7tDfdebHtFuPveENmyWNcQ1ap1r5wYMROWOSOhK4vUGxPAUmts5RUQJdcS-lGF-Wi6vqJl3IX5Ok8DR2Du4_wnqGo1_S3_Oqd4VS2U2FHdxJ3GDVqhUnGX1yf9Vpu9tI5YW3aLLNYQTkqgx3u07OW3n6owJMTvQE7QH43ilNfcVgDzvaqXrYnnswcfAxNSOBCOBM0u8b-_MxYNAsYSISc1aTtrhRid8GJKScR6PHLzOWHzgZFmaAt3k1rqNw8oiTxyyl3EeAIptCN4_nVvXHXPdhdVbLiybHYp6h7_kUzh7-5B65ZLH8Hw0Gtapv68phYPHpYalHbHmaKkwymhhsdBaSieflsh0p4RS1VoRzmEp6J5GXRIftZ-QL0iCeM3ED_BgpQOJVv7h8gxJH4q2Q2PFiavuEHCFMHB77v7JKhuOW-O4oc6uIwxEkLkjqSW4aUMYqSLW1u1PpLvdy_QCZ54BpgR2zo2YXWJYwR84gL0M9LKdz4gNvmuxILhPCFwf9CrXNfrurSQiUAhycl-3VMBcyoAVAYxfnSjjkhsX2uV4bXie_B2NKMmv8xc9P0kzBpaFI9qsR_6rZ4hrFR9I9iIJ_9CxaM2tlTWuN5UwIBGUsFij3KapMo7VHpnpJOraKI-Vba2FY8zdRzNf50EyJL6_WOqGrTV-Xz5R7bZSLbT7HhoPDtej6mlqrwqo3vsleWcGF8VPbXKu8s41ZI4aTe59f7TzR8hwoo80vXS36txnV0at1HnMwJA3PMUmU1eJmdmT1wzDLoQLV1W8IAyrQ0JmMahB-oACqBnj4dyvAi5QhYx5GI_89UuF8-2yPdjTiKLpCsoxdb-daavNVHZDUzObK8zTXAbkAQLkyK1bznd8zTeE8wT5iF0Qdxp1vcOywO-KkjTJMf-HJJrwYYo


  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

7 March 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

OUTSIDE - The Staffordshire Moorlands 
Project funded by Arts Council England's 

Creative People and Places Programme 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Sybil Ralphs – Leader of the 

Council 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

David Smith - Head of Communities and 
Climate Change 

 

WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 

All 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To inform the Committee about the Arts Council England’s award of a grant of 
up to £943,000 for a 3 year project to increase participation in arts and culture 

across the district. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Panel notes the contents of the report 
 

2.2 That the Panel recommends that Cabinet approve the financial commitments 
as set out within the report. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Arts Council England has awarded a grant of up to £943,000 to a 3 year 
project to increase participation in arts and culture across Staffordshire 
Moorlands. This resulted from a competitive bidding process, with an 

application successfully submitted by Support Staffordshire on behalf of a 
consortium which includes Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, Buxton 

and Leek College, and B arts (a Stoke-on-Trent-based arts organisation).  
 

3.2 The project, called Outside, will commence on 1st April 2022 with a 12-month 

preparatory period followed with two years of delivery (April 2023 - March 
2025). It will be an empowerment project with a programme of arts and cultural 

activities that will be led by people in the Staffordshire Moorlands working with 
professional artists as co-producers. 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 11



  

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The project helps to deliver all aims within the corporate plan but particularly 

Aim 1 (To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities 
to live and work) by developing positive relationships with our communities, 

and Aim 3 (To help create a strong economy by supporting further 
regeneration of towns and villages) by encouraging flourishing town centres 
and tourism. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 None identified. 

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
The Council will investigate opportunities for providing positive 

activities through the delivery of the project. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

 
It is anticipated at this stage that the project will be delivered within 
existing staffing resources. 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 
The project aims to engage widely across the community as set out 
in paragraph 7.5. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 
The Council is asked to redeploy its current annual funding of 
community arts activity (£20,8500) to support the project.  

 
The Council is also asked to commit up to £25,500 towards cultural 

activity and £27,175 to underwrite ticket sales during the project’s 
delivery phase (April 2023 onwards). 
 

 
6.5 Legal 

 
The Council will ensure that appropriate contracts, service level 
agreements and governance structures are put in place. 

 
6.6 Climate Change 

 
The Council will work with fellow consortium members to 
investigate ways of using the project to promote understanding of 

Page 24



  

and engagement with the climate change agenda. 
 

6.7 

 

Consultation 

 
N/A 

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

The Council’s financial commitment is in part dependant upon 
ticket sales. However, the cost of underwriting of the ticket sales 

has been factored into the Council’s commitments. 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 David Smith 

Head of Communities and Climate Change 
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
 
7. Detail 

 

Introduction 

7.1 Arts Council England (ACE) has recently confirmed the award of a grant of up 
to £943,000 to a Staffordshire Moorlands consortium for a 3 year project to 
increase participation in arts and culture across the district. This resulted from 

a competitive bidding process, with an application successfully submitted by 
Support Staffordshire on behalf of a consortium which includes Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council, Buxton and Leek College, and Stoke-based arts 
organisation B arts. A previous application in 2019 (reported to the Cabinet on 
12th February 2019) was unsuccessful. 

7.2 The grant is provided through the Arts Council England’s Creative People and 
Places programme. This focuses on areas of England where involvement in 

arts and culture is below the national average. ACE is investing £38.3 million 
of National lottery funding into this programme during 2022-25. It will support 
39 projects in 56 local authority areas across England. Staffordshire 

Moorlands is one of 11 areas entirely new to Creative People and Places. It is 
therefore a prestigious award for the district. 

7.3 The project will commence on 1st April 2022 with a 12-month preparatory 
period followed with two years of delivery (April 2023 - March 2025).  

The Project 

7.4 ‘Outside’ will be an empowerment project with a programme of arts and 
cultural activities that will be led by people in the Staffordshire Moorlands 

working with professional artists as co-producers. Together they will co-curate 

Page 25



  

an arts programme that takes place in, and is about life in, the rural and 
isolated landscape and settlements, villages and market towns of the 
Staffordshire Moorlands.  It will be a programme which is meaningful, 

appealing and relevant to local people, and through this approach will aim to 
engage the non-engaged. 

7.5 ‘Outside’ will focus on engaging with: 

• People of all ages who are struggling with long-term limiting conditions, 
including adults and young people facing mental health challenges; those 

with physical or unseen disability; the frail elderly; and in all cases their 
families and carers  

• The vital elderly including the recently retired; the still active; the recently 
bereaved; and those who are experiencing significant life milestones and 
are ready to engage with the arts 

• Farming families, often working long hours, and under stress 

• Communities with visible and hidden diversity especially Romany 

Gypsies, both travelling and housed; families and the communities 
around them with Polish heritage (from 1945 to current)  

• Households who face multiple issues including poverty, unemployment, 

substance misuse and a lack of education attainment, all of which factors 
combine to put the arts out of reach.  

• People of divergent sexuality. 

• Young people aged between 12 and 25, whose access to the arts has 
been severely curtailed by the reduction of creative subjects at school 

and who have limited physical access to museums, libraries, theatres, 
concert halls and all that they offer. 

7.6 The Council is working with consortium members to identify ways of utilising 

the Nicholson Museum and Art Gallery in the delivery of the project. 

7.7 ‘Outside’ will be led by a diverse Advisory Group, delivered by Community 

Champions, twinned with professional Co-Curators. The Advisory Group will 
be fully involved in decision making, across the programme. This includes 
consortium board membership, budgetary decisions, appointments, 

programme content and capturing and applying feedback and learning. 

Funding 

7.8 In total the project is forecast to spend £1.2M with match funding to be 
confirmed from partners including Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 
Other income to the project will include ticket sales and business sponsorship. 

Match funding will also be sought from other National Lottery funders and 
charitable trusts. 

7.9 The District Council is asked to: 

Page 26



  

a) Continue to commit the existing £20,850k p.a. to supporting grassroots 
arts activity for the next 3 years. This is currently used to fund Support 
Staffordshire to co-ordinate the three Staffordshire Moorlands Arts Forum 

(one per market town), administer an arts grant programme and provide 
general support to the community-led arts sector. Going forward, it is 

proposed that this funding is diverted from the Arts SLA with Support 
Staffordshire to funding ‘Outside’ for the next 3 years, via a revised SLA 
with Support Staffordshire 

b) Provide up to £25,000 funding towards cultural aspects of the 
programme (to be identified during the preparatory period). 

b) Underwrite the projected ticket sales, which are estimated to be £27,175 
over the 2 years of programme delivery.  

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	4 Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel.
	7 Work Programme (6:10pm)
	9 Local Policing Annual Update - Chief Inspector Mark Thorley. (6.30pm)
	11 OUTSIDE - The Staffordshire Moorlands Project funded by Arts Council England's Creative People and Places Programme. (7:30pm)

